
Toastmasters International
District 52

Spring Virtual Business Council Meeting
Friday, May 17, 2024,
7:00-9:00 PM Pacific

Serena McCullough, DTM
Presiding Officer
District Director

Catherine Ghaffari Darrell Zeller, DTM
Administration Manager Registered Parliamentarian

Dennis Ham, DTM
Lawrence Quesada, DTM, PDD

Credentials Desk



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

Delegate’s Packet - Table of Contents
Description Page #
District 52 Council Meeting Agenda 3

The Mission of the District 5

Virtual Meeting and Vote Protocol 6

District 52 Council Meeting Standing Rules 10

Credentials Report 12

Voting Information 13

Voting Instructions 14

Minutes of the 2023 Fall District Council Business Meeting 15

2024-2025 District 52 Alignment 20

District Leadership Committee (DLC) Report 22

Year to Date Profit and Loss Report – 02.29.24 24

2023-2024 Mid-Year Audit Report 25

District Director’s Report 28

Program Quality Director’s Report 30

Club Growth Director’s Report 35

Public Relations Manager Report 37

Division Director’s Reports

Division A – William Anderson 38

Division B – Annette McCullough 40

Division C – Christopher Wilson 41

Division D – Gene Greves 42

Division E – Theresa Ofstad 43

Division F – Colleen Grant 44

Announcements 45

Toastmasters International 2022-2024 Strategic Plan 46

2



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

Meeting Agenda
Friday, May 17, 2024,
7:00-9:00 PM Pacific

3



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

Meeting Agenda (continued)
Friday, May 17, 2024,
7:00-9:00 PM Pacific

4



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

Toastmasters International Mission
We empower individuals to become more effective
communicators and leaders.

District Mission
We build new clubs and support all clubs in achieving excellence.

Club Mission
We provide a supportive and positive learning experience in
which members are empowered to develop communication and
leadership skills, resulting in greater self-confidence and personal
growth.

Toastmasters International Core Values
● Integrity
● Respect
● Service
● Excellence

Toastmasters International Envisioned Future
To be the first-choice provider of dynamic, high-value, experiential
communication, and leadership skills development.

5



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

Virtual Meetings and Electronic Voting (District Council
and District Executive Committee)
Per protocol 7.1, virtual meetings occur as recommended by the District Director and
are agreed upon by a majority of the District Executive Committee. Any agenda item
that requires a vote must adhere to the following process:

● Notice of the electronic vote posted to the District website four weeks in advance
of the vote opening.

● District posts the proposed agenda item at least 14 days in advance of the vote.

For the following agenda items, which are specific to the District Council, a vote must
adhere to the following process:

● District posts proposed budget at least 14 days in advance of the vote.
● District posts information about the proposed appointed District leaders at least

14 days in advance to the vote.

Virtual Meetings
Selecting a virtual meeting platform:

First you will need to select the platform or software that will be utilized. When making
your selection it is important to consider the tasks or business that will be
conducted—this determines the features the platform must have. You may want to
distinguish between required features and nice-to-have features. Some items to
consider are:

● Number of attendees
● Audio and/or video capabilities for the meeting host and attendees
● Ease of use
● Ability for attendees to participate in the discussion.

Once you have established the necessary features, the next step is to evaluate the
available platforms. To do so, consider seeking help from someone on your team or
District who has experience in this area. GoToMeeting is one of many platforms that can
be utilized to support the items noted above.

Finding a team:

To conduct a virtual meeting successfully, you will need help. Do not plan to manage the
meeting platform and host the meeting by yourself. Select or appoint one or two
members who are experienced with technology to support you in managing the
platform. This will allow you to focus on running the meeting and facilitating discussions.

Managing discussions:

6

http://www.gotomeeting.com/


Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

Select a platform that allows attendees to silently signal their desire to speak so not
everyone is speaking at once. Additionally, consider selecting a platform with the ability
to mute attendees to help maintain order during discussions. Most platforms will have a
feature allowing the host to chat with attendees privately or publicly. Ask members to
submit their questions or type in their name to signal that they would like to address the
entire group. As members enter their question or name, the chat feature captures the
requests in the order received. The member or members who are managing the
platform can notify you, the meeting host, of the speaking order of attendees.

Tip:

Before starting the meeting, it is important to provide guidelines for everyone. Some
examples are:

● Attendees should mute their microphone/phone when not speaking.
● Attendees should wait until they are acknowledged before speaking.
● Attendees should limit their speaking time –tell attendees how much time they

have.
● The host reserves the right to mute attendees as needed.

Electronic Voting
Selecting a voting platform:

Similar to preparing for a virtual meeting, you will need to select a platform that will meet
your needs. Some requirements to consider for an electronic vote are:

● Number of voters
● Ability to assign weighted votes (for members carrying multiple votes – not

including proxies)
● Automatic tabulation of results
● Ability to import voters.

Both Election Buddy and Election Runner can accommodate the minimum requirements
needed to host an electronic vote. The basic setup between these two platforms is
similar and both offer free trials for you to experiment.

Finding a team:

When planning and setting up the electronic vote, you will want to assemble a team or
appoint a committee to assist you. Once again, seek out members who are experienced
with technology to manage the voting process.

Processing credentials:
There are some tasks that need to be completed before the vote. These tasks are very
similar to the credential process at in-person meetings. Since the vote will not be held
in-person, the credential process is completed prior to setting up the voting platform.
The tasks you must complete include:

7

https://electionbuddy.com/
https://electionrunner.com/


Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

● Register all voting members prior to setting up the vote. This serves two
purposes:

o It creates a list of voters to be imported into the voting system
o It determines if quorum is met or not based on the number of voters

registered
● Determine the number of votes each member is entitled to, most commonly

known as weighted votes. The club officer list from World Headquarters will help
you assign the number of votes to each voting member.

Registering voters: To register voters, you will need to survey who will be attending the
meeting. The club officer list can be used to obtain the officer’s email address to
distribute the survey. This determines the number of club presidents and vice
presidents’ education who will be in attendance to see if quorum is met. Use a survey
tool, such as Google Forms or Microsoft Forms, to help you attain the information
needed. You should include questions such as:

● Name (first and last)
● Membership number
● Club number(s) in which President/VPE is representing
● Will you be attending the meeting?
● What is your preferred email address to receive the link to vote?

The survey should be distributed to all members who are eligible to vote.

● For the District Executive Committee meetings, this includes all Division
Directors, Area Directors, the District Director, the Program Quality Director, the
Club Growth Director, the Administration Manager, the Finance Manager, the
Public Relations Manager, and the Immediate Past District Director.

● For the District Council meetings, this includes all Club Presidents, Vice
President of Education and District Executive Committee members. However,
members of the District Executive Committee do not count toward a quorum.

Set a specific amount of time for members to register. Once the registration period
has ended, the results can be prepared. Members must attend the meeting to vote.
As such, remove anyone who cannot attend the meeting. Once voter registration
has been completed, your next steps are to:

1. Determine how many Club Presidents and Vice Presidents Education will be in
attendance. This determines if quorum is met.

2. Determine the number of votes each member is entitled to. Members holding
multiple voting positions across clubs are entitled to a maximum of two votes.

3. Download the voter import template list or format the voter information per the
instructions of the voting platform. Common fields include Name, Voter ID, Email
and Weight (number of votes). Using the survey results and club officers list, you
will have all the information to complete the import of voters.

8

https://gsuite.google.com/products/forms/
https://forms.office.com/


Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

Creating the ballots:

The voting platform takes you step-by-step through the process of creating the ballots.
Please note that if more than one agenda item is being voted on, you should create
separate ballots for each item. If multiple agenda items are put onto the same ballot, the
results will not be tabulated until after all items on the ballot have been voted on. For
example, if the ballot includes both the approval of the District budget and District
appointed leaders, the results will not be posted until members have submitted their
selection for both ballots.

Providing notice: Since the vote is conducted electronically, notifications should be
sent to the voters once the vote is launched. Part of setting this up is establishing the
voting period, or when voters can cast their ballots.

Once the ballots are created and ready to be sent to the voting members, you must
determine when to send it. It can be sent prior to the meeting or right before the first
vote, depending on what works best for your meeting.

In the event that a quorum (one-third of all Club Presidents and Vice Presidents
Education) is not met for a District Council meeting, business transacted shall be
deemed as valid as if a quorum were present if it thereafter is expressly approved by
the affirmative vote of a majority of the member clubs in the District on the basis of two
(2) votes per club. The vote and voting period will need to be set to accommodate
obtaining a majority on the basis of two votes per club.
Conducting the virtual meeting and electronic voting:

During the meeting, a team should assist with managing the virtual meeting platform
and the electronic voting platform, including the Administration Manager. As noted
earlier, the meeting should start with housekeeping guidelines so that all attendees are
aware of how the meeting will be conducted. The meeting will then proceed to each
agenda item. If an agenda item requires a vote, then the discussions and voting will
take place.

The District Director or the chair of the meeting will call upon the attendees for
questions and discussion as outlined earlier. Once discussion is over, the chair can ask
the attendees to cast their vote.

Both Election Buddy and Election Runner have dashboards that report in real time and
automatically tabulate the votes as they come in (both in percentages and in number of
votes), although you may need to refresh the page occasionally. Once the voting period
is closed, the team managing the vote can manually close the vote and announce the
results before moving on to the next item. The process will be repeated until all agenda
items have been addressed.

Tip: Closing each vote manually will prevent the results from being changed. The person
overseeing electronic voting should familiarize themselves with the features by practicing with
the free trial. Source:
https://www.toastmasters.org/leadership-central/district-leader-tools/district-management/virtual-meeting-and-vote

9

https://www.toastmasters.org/leadership-central/district-leader-tools/district-management/virtual-meeting-and-vote


Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

District 52 Council Meeting Standing Rules
From TI District Administrative Bylaws, Articles IX - XI and XIII, as amended.

(Not subject to approval by the District Council)

Article IX: District Council
a. Composition The District Council shall consist of the District Executive Committee, as

defined in Article XI(a) of these administrative bylaws, and the representatives from each
Member Club in good standing in the District, who are the Club President and Vice President
Education. Each Member Club is entitled to two (2) votes, and the club can determine
whether the Club President or Vice President Education, holding two (2) votes, or both
representatives, with one (1) vote each, will act as voting members of the District Council.
These shall be the only voting members of the District Council. References made in these
administrative bylaws to “members of the District Council” shall mean only voting members.

b. Authority The District Council shall serve as the administrative governing body of the
District, operating with powers delegated to the District Council by the Toastmasters
International Board of Directors and subject at all times to the ultimate direction of the Board
of Directors and the Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws, Policies, and decisions of
Toastmasters International, and these administrative bylaws. The District Council shall
conduct all business of the District, shall assume responsibility for the payment, with District
funds, of all debts incurred in the conduct of authorized District activities, and shall not
assess or impose any financial obligation on any Member Club or any individual member of a
club. Members of the District Council in attendance at the annual District conference are
required to attend the Annual Meeting of the District Council.

Article X: Council Meetings, Quorum, and Voting
a. Regular Meetings The District Council shall hold at least two (2) meetings during each

program year, with the exact number and schedule of meetings to be fixed by the District
Council. The first meeting must take place no later than September 30 to approve the District
budget and confirm the appointment of District leaders. One meeting shall be the Annual
Meeting and shall be held between March 15 and June 1. Notice of any meeting shall be
sent in writing to all District Council members at least four (4) weeks prior to the date of such
meeting.

Each program year the District Executive Committee determines whether the Annual
Meeting of the District Council, in which the elections take place, is conducted online or
hybrid. All other meetings of the District Council are conducted online.

b. Special Meetings Special meetings of the District Council may be called by the International
President, the District Director, a majority of the District Executive Committee, or not less
than one-fourth of the members of the District Council. Notice thereof shall be sent in writing
to all District Council members at least two (2) weeks prior to the date of such meeting. The
notice shall include the reason the meeting is being called. Any other valid business may be
transacted at the meeting.

c. Quorum One-third of the Club Presidents and Vice Presidents Education from Member
Clubs in good standing in the District shall constitute a quorum for all District Council
meetings. In the event that any business is transacted at any District Council meeting at
which a quorum is not present, the action shall be deemed as valid as if a quorum were
present if it thereafter is expressly approved in writing, personally, by mail, fax, e-mail,

10

https://www.toastmasters.org/leadership-central/governing-documents#ArticleXICommittees332
https://www.toastmasters.org/Leadership-Central/governing-Documents#ArticlesofIncorporationofToastmastersInternational
https://www.toastmasters.org/Leadership-Central/governing-Documents#BylawsofToastmastersInternational
https://www.toastmasters.org/Leadership-Central/governing-Documents#PolicyandProtocol


Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

electronic transmission or other reasonable means, by the affirmative vote of a majority of
the Member Clubs in the District on the basis of two (2) votes per club.

d. Voting

When the voting process is conducted only the Club President and/or Vice President
Education of any Member Club may vote on behalf of the club as its representative. Either
club officer may carry the club's two (2) votes or, each of these club officers may carry one
(1) vote, as determined by the club membership. The representative from any Member Club
in good standing is entitled to a maximum of two (2) votes.

District Executive Committee members are entitled to one (1) vote and may cast up to two
(2) additional votes as a representative of a Member Club, for a maximum of three (3) votes.

District Council members must cast their own votes; no proxies are permitted.

Article XIII: Rules of Order
Robert’s Rules of Order Newly Revised shall be the final authority on parliamentary procedure
insofar as Robert's Rules do not conflict with any provision of these administrative bylaws,
the Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws of Toastmasters International, Policies set by the Toastmasters
International Board of Directors, or applicable law. If the District is located in a jurisdiction where
Robert’s Rules are not a recognized authority on parliamentary procedure, the District may use the
recognized authority in the jurisdiction where the District is located in place of Robert’s Rules.

Note:

District Council Members (DEC, Club Presidents & VP of Education) must sign up for the District Council
Meeting by registering in advance. District Council member registration and attendance are important to
constitute the required quorum for the successful transaction of business at this meeting. Click link to
register for this meeting:
https://us06web.zoom.us/meeting/register/tZIldOCvqjoqGdftS94WnTRSXji4VF0rykn1 

After registering, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about joining the meeting.
Registration will close on May 16, 2024, at 11:59 PM PDT. The agenda will be emailed two weeks prior to
the meeting date. Questions regarding the District 52 Council Meeting must be submitted in writing by
May 3, 2024, at 11:59 PM PDT by email to the District Administration Manager
at adminmgr@district52.org

11

https://www.toastmasters.org/leadership%20central/governing%20documents#ArticlesofIncorporationofToastmastersInternational
https://www.toastmasters.org/leadership%20central/governing%20documents#BylawsofToastmastersInternational
https://us06web.zoom.us/meeting/register/tZIldOCvqjoqGdftS94WnTRSXji4VF0rykn1
mailto:adminmgr@district52.org


Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

Credentials Committee Report | District 52 Toastmasters

District 52 Credentials Committee Report
Clubs Eligible X 2 = ______________

Quorum (1/3 of Clubs Eligible X 2) = ______________

Presidents and Vice Presidents Education Represented = ______________

District Executive Committee Members Represented = ______________

Total Ballots Available = ______________

Simple Majority (50% of the Total Ballots Available + 1) = ______________

District Business
District Director: Approved ______________

Not Approved ______________

District Club Growth Director: Approved ______________

Not Approved ______________

District Program Quality Director: Approved ______________

Not Approved ______________

Area A Director: Approved ______________

Not Approved ______________

Area B Director: Approved ______________

Not Approved ______________

Area C Director: Approved ______________

Not Approved ______________

Area D Director: Approved ______________

Not Approved ______________

Area E Director: Approved ______________

Not Approved ______________

Area F Director: Approved ______________

12



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

Voting Information | District 52 Toastmasters

1. A vote master will be present at the business meeting to run and tally of votes.

2. We will be using the voting system to vote for the BUDGET only. All other proposals
will be adopted and NOT voted on.

3. Early in the Business Meeting, Delegates will do a practice vote. At that time,
you will receive a text and an email from invitations@mail.electionbuddy.com with
a link to access the voting platform. Check your spam/junk folder if you do not
receive it.

4. Click the link that was emailed or texted to you and sign in using the Access Key
and Passwords given to you in the email or text. The Access Key is your MEMBER
NUMBER. Please reach out via Chat Only to the Vote Master with questions.

5. This will bring you to the voting screen for the first vote. Make your selection.
and Click Verify Your Selection. Confirm your choice and click” Submit Ballot”.
IMPORTANT: DO NOT CLOSE THE SCREEN AFTER CLICKING SUBMIT
BALLOT.

6. A further explanation on how to vote is located on the next page.

7. You will be given 3 mins to cast your vote. After the vote, the results will be shown
on screen.

** IF YOU ACCIDENTALLY CLOSE THE BROWSER WINDOW, YOU CAN GET BACK
INTO THE VOTING SCREEN BY GOING HERE:
https://secure.electionbuddy.com/m/d52 **

13

https://secure.electionbuddy.com/m/d52


Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

Voting Instructions | District 52 Toastmasters

1. Voters will have received an email from “Toastmasters District 52” This email will
include a link that your voters will use to take them to the login page and their
access key and password. If they have a text message on file, they may also
receive a text.
Your voters will click on the links provided.

2. On the login page, the voter will enter their access key and password exactly as
depicted on the notice. Successful entry of your credentials will bring them to the
ballot for your first vote.

3. The voter will read the ballot carefully and follow the instructions provided on the
ballot to vote on the item. After they have made your selections, they will select
the “Continue” button at the bottom of the ballot.

4. They will be brought to a page where you can review the choices they made on
the previous page. They will confirm their choice is correct and then select the
“Submit” button. Or, if they accidentally selected the wrong option they can go
back and edit their ballot.

5. They will then be brought to the “Thank You!” page. This page includes your
confirmation code for this vote. At the bottom of the page is an orange “Next
Vote” button. The voter will select this button.

6. The “Next Vote” button will take them to the meeting page. This meeting page
will be blank until the next vote goes live. Do not close this web page or
navigate away from it.

7. Once the next vote goes live, a new button will appear on the meeting page.
The voter will select this button to proceed through the voting process for the
next vote and repeat steps 3 through 6 until all voting has been completed.

8. If the voter gets out of the voting flow (i.e. by closing their browser or needing to
use a different device) they can go to the following link:
https://secure.electionbuddy.com/m/d52

The above link will return them to the flow of voting and the next vote will appear
when ready.

14

https://secure.electionbuddy.com/m/d52


Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

Previous Meeting Minutes | District 52 Toastmasters

District 52 Fall Business Meeting
September 22, 2023 - Meeting Minutes 

In Attendance (61 attendees) 
Serena McCullough, DTM – District Director 
Albert Lin, DTM  
Catherine Ghaffari, - EC2, Administration Manager & Audit Committee
Chair Christie Kadharmestan, DTM, Finance Manager 
Colleen Grant, TC5, Division F Director 
DJ Reed, DTM 
Ede Ferrari D’Angelo, DTM, PID 
Gene Graves,  
Jeenna Tang, SR5, PRM 
Rick Sydor, Registered Parliamentarian 
Ruchin Gupta – IP4, PQD,  

Adalberto Padilla Ann Santilli Annette McCullough Bill Anderson
Christine Brean Christopher Wilson Circe Denyer Constance
English Cynthia Griffin Daniel Higgins Darryl De Bond Dawn
Jenkins Dazhane Blackshire Donald Cogan Dylan Busse Eder
Avellaneda Elaine Dizon Enrico Pena Eric Kong Gerard Simonian
Infinite Jim, Javeed Mohammed Jeff Harman John Murray Jorge
Alvarez Kawanna Lewis Lawrence Quesada, DTM Linnaea
Mallette Lynn Blair Marianne Toghia Marko Obradovic Mike Day
Myla Esmail Nancy Walsh Natalie Speech Neidy Pinuelas
NevianaTzvetkova Patricia Gainer Raul Munoz Regi George Rita
Benefield Rose Abbott, DTM Rosetta Walker Shawn Adams Steve
Pines Suzanne Todorovic Thelma Ghzanian Theresa Ofstad
Thomas Iland, DTM Veronica Corona

15



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

District 52 Fall Business Meeting
September 22, 2023 - Meeting Minutes 

Agenda  

Call to Order and Welcome  

District Director Serena McCullough, DTM gaveled the meeting start at 7:00
PM. Greetings, welcome, and introductions. 

Link to the digital Business Meeting packet 
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1hoNOx8Wck1oOyu70kgDH8HDW4N_IEcf5/edit
? rtpof=true  

Reading of the District Mission & Pledge of Allegiance, Colleen Grant, Division F
Director.  

Adoption of Credentials Committee Report · Credentials Committee: Ede Ferrari
D’Angelo & DJ Reed 
● ∙There are 76 eligible clubs in the district. Each club receives two votes, one for the president

and one for the vice president of education. To achieve a quorum, one third of the
presidents and vice presidents of education must be represented, which is 51. 
● There are 86 presidents and vice presidents of education represented. ● District
Executive Committee members do not count towards achieving a quorum. ● Clubs
Eligible X 2 = 152 (76 clubs) Quorum (1/3 of Clubs Eligible X 2) = 51 (24 clubs) 

● Presidents and Vice Presidents Education Represented = 86 (43 clubs) District
Executive Committee Members Represented = 21 
● Total Ballots Available = 107  
● Majority (50% of the Total Ballots Available + 1) = 54  

Without objection, the credential report was adopted by unanimous consent.  

Adoption of the Meeting Rules  

● The meeting rules are on pages 11-12 of the business meeting packet. Without
objection, the meeting rules were adopted by unanimous consent.  

Adoption of the Meeting Agenda  

• The meeting agenda is on pages 3-4 of the business meeting packet for review. 
Without objection, the meeting agenda was adopted by unanimous consent.  

16



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

District 52 Fall Business Meeting
September 22, 2023 - Meeting Minutes 

Approval of Meeting Minutes of May 12, 2023, Spring Business Meeting  

● May 12, 2023, meeting minutes are on pages 16-23 of the Fall Business meeting
packet. The minutes of May 12, 2023, District Council meeting, were unanimously
approved by the District Executive Committee on September 22, 2023.

Meeting Voting Procedures: Albert Lin, DTM 

• Introduced Election Buddy 

• Items to be voted on 

• Sent an e-mail and SMS to the registered members 

• Voting Procedures, voting process, and Council meeting protocols were explained from
pages 9-10 & 14-15 of the business meeting packet. 

Meeting Protocol Parliamentarian Rick Sydor, PID 

Voting Procedures, voting process, and Council meeting protocols were explained
from pages 11-13 of the business meeting packet. 

Presentation of 2023-2024 D52 budget – Christy Kadharmestan, DTM, Finance
Manager 

Budget not yet approved by TMI. Pending exception resolution. Currently lodging
percentage higher than allowed – requested exception due to higher costs of hotels at the
conference in August 2023. 
Rose Abbott had a question regarding budget approval. The Vote Master erroneously sent other
items to vote before voting on budget. Since there are no objections, on behalf of the Finance
Committee the budget is approved as presented. No vote at this point 

Speech contests format proposal – Serena McCullough, DTM, DD 

DEC recommends that Area contests be held in hybrid format. 
Questions: Circe: who will pay for equipment necessary to hold contests in hybrid
format? Thelma G: can TMI help with the costs associated with hybrid format? Answer:
all costs included in budget previously presented 

DEC recommends that Division contests be held in hybrid format. 
No questions 

DEC recommends that District contests be held in hybrid format. 
No questions 

17



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

District 52 Fall Business Meeting
September 22, 2023 - Meeting Minutes 

Vote: Vote Master, Albert Lin,  

• Sent e-mail and SMS with links to voting platform. Polls open for 10 minutes.

Voting results: Budget voted as presented with 68 yes and 2 no’s. Spring Speech
Contest format: Hybrid option voted with 77.5% of votes – no abstentions.

2023-2024 Alignment Report  

• Alignment report was approved by Toastmasters International. The report was sent to
members via e-mail and was made available on website district52.org. The 2023-2024
Alignment Report is on pages 25-32 of the business meeting packet. Without objection, the
D52 alignment report is approved as presented by unanimous consent. 

2022-2023 Q4 Profit and Loss Report  

• Finance Manager Peter Genter, DTM (not present). The 2022-2023 Q3 District Profit and
Loss Report year through June 30, 2023, is not included in the package as some
reclassifications are still pending from TMI.  

2022-2023 Mid-Year Audit Report ∙ Catherine Ghaffari, District Audit Committee
Chair.  

• The Year End Audit Report as of 06.30.2023 is found on pages 40-42 in the business
meeting packet. All expenses were reviewed and approved according to TMI rules.
Floor opened for questions; none came forth. The report was received as
presented.  

District Executive Committee and District Manager Reports  

Public Relations Manager report presented by Jeanna Tang, SR5 may be found on pages 44 of
the business meeting packet. 

• Newsletters and website maintenance 

• Social media: highlight members and clubs 

• Share why you renewed so it can be publicized  

Club Growth Director report – Keith Birch, absent.

18



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

• Report may be found on page 45 & 46 of the business meeting packet. 

Program Quality Director report presented by Ruchin Gupta, IP4 may be found on pages
47- 49 of the business meeting packet.  

• Club Officer Training: 86% of clubs have at least 4 officers trained 

• Speech Contests 

• Educational Awards 

District Director report presented by Serena McCullough, DTM may be found on pages 50 of
the business meeting packet. 

• District goals: expand our reach 

• Help club achieve Distinguished level  

• Engage members in new leadership opportunities

4 Announcements  

District Director Serena McCullough DTM - Thank you’s. 
The next District 52 Business Meeting will take place via Zoom on May 17, 2024, at 7:00
PM.
The District 52 Annual Conference will take place via Zoom is on May 18, 2024 

Meeting Adjourned by District Director Serena McCullough, DTM at 8:20 PM.  

Meeting Minutes Respectfully Submitted by: Catherine Ghaffari, D52 Administration
Manager 2023-2024

19



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

2024-2025 District 52 AMENDED Alignment (NOT FINALIZED)

Serena McCullough, DTM, District 52 Director

Roberta Perry, DTM, Alignment Chair

20



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

2024-2025 District 52 AMENDED Alignment (NOT FINALIZED)

Serena McCullough, DTM, District 52 Director

Roberta Perry, DTM, Alignment Chair

21



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

22



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

23



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

Profit and Loss Report 02.29.2024

Brian Schweidenback, DTM, Finance Manager – 2023-2024

24



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

2023-2024 Mid-Year Audit Report – District 52

Catherine Ghaffari

25



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

2023-2024 Mid-Year Audit Report – District 52

Catherine Ghaffari

26



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

2023-2024 Mid-Year Audit Report – District 52

Catherine Ghaffari

27



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

Director Reports

Serena McCullough, DTM, District 52 Director

It has been my privilege to serve as District Director of District 52. For the
last 10 months, I have learned many life lessons and formed bonds with
our members and District Leaders that will last decades. Many know that I
call Toastmasters my “second family” and this has never proven truer than
this year. I am incredibly proud and appreciative of the District Leadership
Team and the members of our District for supporting their members and
clubs which is resulting in great strides towards our goal of Smedley
Distinguished!

As of May 2nd, our District is up by 212 members from the previous year,
an average of 3 new members per club. This is due to a strong club
response to potential members, drive to explore hybrid, quality of meetings
and the overall impression we give to guests as they come in. THANK YOU
and WELL DONE to all the members and club officers who are growing
their clubs. I am thrilled to report the phenomenal 176 educational award
increase, over 50% from the previous year. HUGE CONGRATULATIONS to
our members who are growing their skills and utilizing the Pathways
program to take that next step while supporting their clubs in achieving
Distinguished status.

Our next challenge is to focus on club building/rebuilding, with the goal of
12 more paid clubs by June 30th. In order to do that I need your help.
Please continue to send us your corporate and community leads, thank you
in advance for helping to grow your District.

As Helen Blanchard, Past International President said, “if you get out of
Toastmasters all there is to get out of Toastmasters you will never get out of
Toastmasters”. Let’s continue to support our fellow members in achieving
their dreams, growing our clubs, submitting our educational achievements,
growing our District, and pushing ourselves and our clubs a little bit more to
reach those stretch goals.

28



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

Together we can achieve the goal for our District this year – 100 years of
legacy…Smedley Distinguished!

29



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

Director Reports

Ruchin Gupta, DTM, Program Quality Director

D52 Trio Training

1. The Trio attended mid-year District Leader Training sessions in January
2024. Training
focused on leadership development topics and totaled of 16 hours of
training with 2 hours
of pre-work.
2. Attending Region 2 Peer PQD calls monthly with the Region Advisors
and fellow Program
Quality Directors. Each session is focused on a different district leadership
topic.
District Trainings and Workshops

1. Marc Richards is conducting monthly Free Toast Host trainings on the
first Monday of every
month.
2. District is hosting Monthly workshops on topics like DTM Series, Running
Hybrid Contests,
Pathways, Club Growth, Membership Growth and Moments of Truth.

Club Officer Trainings (2nd Round)

1. 23 Trainings were conducted for the 2nd round between November 2023
and February
2024.
2. Facilitated 12 early bird trainings and 10 make-up club officer training
sessions
3. Trainers for the second round consisted of: Rose Abbott, Catherine
Ghaffari, Ruchin Gupta, John Murray,
Lawrence Quesada, Red Runyon, Lance Webster, and more
4. 382 club officers were trained out of 528 (73%)
5. 19 clubs achieved 100% officer training.
6. Breakdown of number of Club Officers trained are as follows:

30



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

7. 65 clubs were eligible for the ½ DCP point (had 4-6 officers trained) out
of 84 (78%)

8. Eight Clubs won the incentive of Club Officer Pins (100% of club officers
trained by 1/27).
They are as follows:
a. Valencia Toastmasters Club
b. City Masters Plaza
c. City Masters 2
d. PDS Personal Development Storytellers
e. Prepared Speakers Toastmasters Club
f. Outliers Toastmasters Club
g. Foothills Community Toastmasters Club
h. Daybreak Speakers

9. Area F62 had 100% of their club officers trained.

10.Breakdown of the number of Club Officers trained per division are:

11. Thirteen officers from other Districts were also trained.

31



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

Toastmasters Leadership Institute

1. Planned and executed D52 Toastmasters Leadership Institute (TLI) in
January 2024
2. Had 100 attendees on Zoom and conducted multiple workshops along
with the Club Officer
trainings for the individual officer positions.
3. A club success panel was conducted which highlighted the best
practices and procedures
the top clubs are following.
4. The workshops conducted during the TLI were

a. Secrets of compelling storytelling
b. You are speaking but are you connecting
c. Membership Math vs Membership Mindset

Area Director Club Visits

1. The Area Directors are still in the process of visiting their clubs by the
deadline of May 31 st
2. As of now reports for 32 clubs have been completed out of total of 84
(38%).
3. Reports for the following areas are completed: C30, F62, C32, E53, A11

Pathways

1. Created a Pathways team with Dawn Jenkins to assist our members with
Pathways and get
more members enrolled in Pathways.
2. Jim Kearney is acting as the DTM Chair.
3. Workshop for Pathways are conducted every 3rd Tuesday of each
month.

Speech Contests

1. Conducted multiple judges and functionary trainings for the Area and
Division Directors
2. Conducted multiple trainings with our Hybrid Chair Lawrence Quesada
on “How to plan

32



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

and run a Hybrid Contest” for the Area and Division Directors.
3. Coordinated with the Division and Area Contests to have a full round of
both Area and
Division Contests. We had 8 contests at the Area Level and 6 at the
Division Level.
4. This produced 12 total contestants, 6 in Table Topics and 6 in
International, set to compete
on May 18 th at our District Speech Contest.

Spring Conference

1. Planning the Hybrid Annual District Conference on May 18 th 2024 at the
Glendale
Community College.
2. Secured a great slate of speakers for the conference

Education Awards

1. Congratulations to all our District 52 members who collectively earned
462 Education
Awards as of May 1st, 2024.
2. Congratulations to the following members who earned their
Distinguished Toastmaster
Awards, the highest educational award in Toastmasters: Ruchin Gupta
3. Few other members are in the process of submitting their DTM awards
by June.
4. As of now we have 10 clubs that are Distinguished or Higher. They are
as follows:

33



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

Program Quality Incentives and Initiatives

1. Triple Crown Pins – 40 members will be receiving a triple crown pin at
the conference.
2. DTM Pins – Members receiving their DTM award will be getting a DTM
pin at the
conference.
3. Club Officer Pins – Clubs that had 100% club officers trained by
1/27/2024 won club
officer pin set which can be picked up at the conference. They are: Valencia
Toastmasters
Club, PDS Personal Development Storytellers, Prepared Speakers
Toastmasters Club,
Outliers Toastmasters Club, Foothills Community Toastmasters Club,
Daybreak Speaker
4. The first two individuals, per path, to earn a level 5 receive a proficient
pathways pin
for their pathways.
D52 Trio Training

34



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

Director Reports

Keith Birch, IP4, Club Growth Director
Club Growth Director Report | District 52

Team: Keith Birch (Club Growth Director), Jeanna Tang (Club Extension Chair), Lawrence
Quesada Club (Club Growth Team Advisor), Open (Club Retention Chair), Demo Meeting
Team(varies)

Club Growth & Member Retention Initiatives

1. We are using a list of potential club leads generated by our research from the LA Business
Journal. We use their weekly list of all the top industries in LA County and select the ones that
are in geographical area.
2. Calls are being made to business, in addition to an email follow-up.
3. We have reached the entire club leadership in District 52 asking them for leads for new clubs,
contact 414 club leaders.
4. Have a meeting with Area and Division Directors to brainstorm on how to get leads for new
clubs.
5. Have worked to revive clubs that did not meet the minimum, presently we are working with
SRAR, Malibu Toastmasters.
6. We contacted Division Directors and Area Director to follow up and review clubs that have not
made their payments.

Club Building Initiatives

1. Year to date we have chartered 4 clubs.

a) LA Care
b) HDR
c) Human Good
d) JP Morgan Chase

2. Division Director Chris Wilson has a promising lead that we are exploring.
3. We are aggressively reaching out to business to sell them the advantage of having a
Toastmasters Club in their office.

New Clubs In Progress

1.We had a Demo Meeting with Journal Tech on April 8, 2024, we are hoping to charter by April
26, 2024.

Additional Activities for the second half of the year

1. Mid-Year Training completed in Houston, Jan 2024
2. Attended PIHRA Meeting on April 9, 2024.
3. Attending Monthly District Leadership Meeting.

35



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

4. Attending monthly meetings with Region Advisors.
5. Attending monthly meetings with peer Club Growth

36



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

Director Reports

Jeanna Tang, DTM, Public Relations Manager

37



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

Division Reports

Bill Anderson, Division A Director

38



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

39



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

Division Reports

Annette McCullough, Division B Director

40



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

Division Reports

Christopher Wilson, Division C Director

41



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

Division Reports

Gene Graves, Division D Director

42



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

Division Reports

Theresa Ofstad, Division E Director

43



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

Division Reports

Colleen Grant, Division F Director

44



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

District 52 Announcements

District Conference – May 18th (All Day)

● World Champion of Public Speaking (2005), Lance Miller, DTM
● Pat Johnso, DTM, Past President & Pamela McCowen, Past Region

Advisor
● World Champion 2nd Place 2023(Bahamas Convention)
● World Champion 3rd Place 2023 (Bahamas Convention)

● District 52’s 2024 Table Topics & International Speech Contest
● Centennial Swag for ALL in-person members

● 100 Years of Legacy…Smedley Distinguished pin for ALL in-person
members

● Raffle Prizes
● Andmore!

Membership Incentives

● Triple Crown Pin
● DTM Pin

● Bring a friend incentive

Club Incentives

● 8+ Members and 5 DCP Points – Earn $80 Toastmasters bucks
● President’s Distinguished Club – 2 invitations to special invite only

dinner, last week of June 2024

Special Event – June 8th with the 2023 World Champion of Public
Speaking

Sponsor a Club Incentive

● Give a corporate or community lead to the District by 6/17/2024
and be entered into a drawing for a surprise gift

● If lead turns into a club we will be giving you an additional surprise
gift/recognition at the Awards & Installation in July 2024

● Club that sponsors by 6/30/2024 earns $150 Toastmasters gift

45



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

Toastmasters International 2022-2024 Strategic Plan

46



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

47



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

48



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

49



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

50



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

51



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

52



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

53



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

54



Virtual District 52 Council Meeting
May 17, 2024

55


